
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Super visor
BRENDA

C
L  STUMBO

HEATHER JA RRELL ROE
Tre

STAN EL DRIDGE

JOHN P. N WMAN II
GLORIA PETERSON
DEBBIE S ANSON

JIMMIE WIL SON, JR.

April 5, 2022

Work Session – 5:00 pm 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m.

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center
7200 S. Huron River Drive

.
lerk 

asurer 

stees 
E

W

Tru

Ypsilanti, MI 48197



Ch a r t er  T ow n sh ip  of  Y p si la n t i
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197

SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE • TREASURER STAN
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • DEBBIE SWANSON •
JIMMIE WILSON, JR.

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2021

5:00pm

1. AAATA PRESENTATION……………………………………………MATT CARPENTER, AAATA

2. REBRANDING PRESENTATION………………………………………………………M3 GROUP

3. AGENDA REVIEW ………………………………………………………..SUPERVISOR STUMBO

4. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS



2022 Transit Service and Millage Proposal

Meeting:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees Meeting
Meeting Date:  April 5, 2022

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S)
The Township Board of Trustees can receive a presentation from the TheRide (Ann
Arbor Area Transportation Authority) regarding an ongoing millage proposal. Questions 
and discussion are welcome. As a member of the Authority, TheRide is keen to hear 
feedback from the Township Board and residents. Please provide feedback to the 
Township’s board appointee to TheRide, Ryan Hunter

Full information, video presentation, and video of TheRide Board discussion are 
available on-line here. <https://www.theride.org/about/projects>

ISSUE SUMMARY
TheRide provides public transit and has taxing authority in three communities: the cities 
of Ypsilanti and Ann Arbor, and Ypsilanti Township. TheRide’s Board of Directors has 
laid out ambitious goals for TheRide and transit services; advance the community’s 
needs for social, environmental and economic sustainability through strategic provision 
of transit, while remaining careful stewards of the public trust.  This 5-year service 
expansion and millage proposal (2024-2028, 2.38 mills) outlines how far TheRide could 
move towards achieving those goals by 2028. If approved, this proposal would replace 
the existing 0.7 mill levy, creating a net additional levy of 1.68 mills. A larger local 
investment in public transit magnifies outside funding. For every $1 in local tax 
investment, TheRide collects another $1.40 in federal and State transit formula grants. 
All those funds are directly invested in our communities and residents.

This proposal includes several key improvements to public transit services:
• Maintain all existing services,
• Expand evening, late night, weekend, and holiday services systemwide,
• Introduce express service between downtown Ann Arbor and downtown

Ypsilanti,
• Increase social equity by equalizing services across all member communities,
• Increase access to jobs, housing, medical, education, and other destinations,
• Provide a mobility alternative for everyone including seniors, persons with

disabilities or low incomes, workers and employers, students, and those striving
for a car-free lifestyle,

• Increase TheRide’s capacity to deliver major projects in the future,
• Maximizing the use of federal, State and local funding, and
• Provide new services called for in public documents such as the Ann Arbor

A2Zero plan, the Washtenaw County Housing Affordability and Economic Equity
Analysis, the WATS 2045 Plan, the Ypsilanti Township Master Plan, City of 
Ypsilanti’s Climate Action Plan, and the RTA’s Regional Transit Plan.

It is the Board of TheRide who will decide what, if any, request is made of voters. 
TheRide’s Board will need to approve a mill rate, referenda date, and ballot language. If

1

https://www.theride.org/about/projects


rate,

2

an August date is selected, the deadline for ballot language is May 10. A decision is 
possible April 21st.

BACKGROUND
The proposal detailed in this memo outlines the improvements and enhancements
TheRide could deliver between 2024-2028. These improvements all advance the
Board’s goals, respond to requests from the community, and are aligned with the
emerging Long-Range Plan.

In 2019 TheRide began developing a new Long-Range Plan to serve as the blueprint for 
meeting our communities’ changing needs. Based on strategic goals identified by 
TheRide’s Board of Directors, and incorporating extensive public requests and feedback, 
this Plan is expected to be finalized later in 2022. This 5-year millage proposal is the first 
phase of implementing that longer-term vision.

TheRide has served our communities for over 50 years and has implemented many 
successful initiatives. As TheRide’s existing millage expires soon, now is an appropriate 
time to build on past successes with a new Long-Range Plan and 5-year millage.

ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S)
1. Date: TheRide’s Board can select August or November 2022. 2023 is a fallback date.

The new millage would begin in 2024.
2. Mill Rate: TheRide’s Board can accept the CEO’s proposed rate, modify the CEO’s

proposal, or generate one of their own.
PRIOR RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS & POLICIES

By law and policy TheRide’s Board has authority to approve 1) date of a referendum, 2) mill
and 3) ballot language. The CEO only makes proposals and recommendations on these 
matters.

IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDED ACTION(S)
• Budgetary/Fiscal:  High. Determines revenue and service levels through 2028.
• Social: High. Revenue & services levels impact passengers, taxpayers and society

in general.
• Environmental: High. Services levels impact ridership and environmental benefits.
• Governance:  High. TheRide’s Board must act on millage decisions.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Details of Proposed Services and Mill Rate
2. Rationale for Timing and Referendum Date

https://www.theride.org/about/projects/theride-2045


Attachment 1: Details of Proposed Services and Mill Rate

This section details the itemized content, rationales, costs, benefits, and timelines of the 2022 
millage proposal.

Overview of Millage Proposal, Content, Rates, and Timelines

Based on policies approved by local jurisdictions1, and public feedback during the development 
of the Long-Range Plan, while there have been concerns raised about overall tax rates there is
a clear public and institutional desire to maintain and enhance transit services. During the
public involvement for the Long-Range Plan, over 1,400 people provided input, and 72% of 
respondents indicated they wanted to see transformational investment in public transit. This 
public input aligns with goals developed by TheRide’s Board of Directors: improve access for
seniors, persons with mobility challenges and low incomes, increase social equity and
environmental benefits, facilitate labor mobility and economic development, and enable 
access to education. Such goals (i.e. Ends policies) help to clarify what TheRide does, for 
whom, and at what cost, and are directions for the CEO and staff.

As the first stage of implementing the emerging Long-Range Plan (TheRide 2045), the CEO is 
proposing a new 5-year millage (2024-2028) with a mill rate of 2.38 mills for the consideration of 
TheRide’s Board. Each element of this proposal addresses multiple goals to different degrees. 
For example, more weekend bus service can aid seniors, persons with disabilities, and labor 
mobility simultaneously, while also increasing social equity. Elements are grouped into two 
broad categories:

•  Maintain Existing Services. This includes renewal of basic operating funds with
allowances to continue previously under-funded services and address inflation, as well 
as staffing requests to meet growing expectations.

•  Service Enhancement Options for improving or expanding public transit services for
residents and passengers. This includes expansion of overnight services, customer 
service agents, a new express route, longer hours of service systemwide, more frequent 
weekend service systemwide, and capital funds for future projects.

The following table itemizes each element, gross annual cost, net mill rate, cumulative mill rate, 
and tentative start date. As the table illustrates, all the elements combined would require 2.38 
mills. Since this proposal replaces the existing 0.7 mill levy, the new net levy is 1.68 mills. Key 
points include:

•  The proposal is weighted towards creating direct, immediate benefits, with 81% of
millage and 79% of costs going directly to services in the community.

•  Funding for major capital projects requires 15% of costs and 17% millage, and
maximizes outside capital funding that can be invested in the community in the future.

•  Maintaining existing services receives 58% of expenses (1.52 mills) and 64% of the
millage.

•  Possible new services in the community account for 28% of costs and 19% of millage
(0.86 mills).

1 Ann Arbor’s A2Zero and Transportation Master Plan; Ypsilanti’s Climate Action Plan and Non-Motorized 
Transportation Master Plan; Ypsilanti Township’s Master Plan; Washtenaw County’s ReImagine Washtenaw, 
Opportunity Index, and Housing Affordability and Economic Equity Analysis; WATS 2045 Long Range Plan, and the 
RTA’s Regional Transit Plan.

3

https://www.theride.org/sites/default/files/2021-12/AAATA%20Board%20Gov%20Policy%20Manual_v2.19_2021_12_03_0.pdf
https://www.theride.org/about/projects/theride-2045
https://www.a2gov.org/departments/sustainability/Carbon-Neutrality/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.a2gov.org/departments/engineering/Pages/Ann-Arbor-Moving-Together-Towards-Vision-Zero.aspx
https://cityofypsilanti.com/DocumentCenter/View/309/Climate-Action-Plan-PDF
https://cityofypsilanti.com/DocumentCenter/View/3068/Adopted-Non-Motorized-Plan-Update-2021-07-13_Website
https://cityofypsilanti.com/DocumentCenter/View/3068/Adopted-Non-Motorized-Plan-Update-2021-07-13_Website
https://ytown.org/images/Planning-And-Zoning/Ypsilanti-Township-Master-Plan-2020.pdf
https://www.washtenawavenue.org/home
https://www.washtenaw.org/2480/Opportunity-Index
https://www.washtenaw.org/722/Affordable-Housing
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/524e0929e4b093015db69c07/t/5c892d277817f7c82eae97bb/1552493920366/Draft+2045+LRP.pdf
https://rtamichigan.org/rmtp-update/


It is important to note that the gross annual costs cannot be directly compared with the net mill 
rate as each elements receives differing fare revenues. Detailed descriptions of each element 
are provided after the table.

Elements and Costs of 2022 Service and Millage Proposal
Annual Cost

(Gross)*
Mill Rate

(Net)*
% of
Total

$ Costs Rate

% of
Total
Rate

Mill Rate
Start Date

**
Maintain Existing Services
1. Renewal of existing millage $     5,600,000 26% 0.70 29% 0.70 Aug 2024
2. Allowance for deficit $     4,800,000 22% 0.60 25% 1.30 Aug 2024
3. Allowance for inflation $     1,280,000 6% 0.13 5% 1.43 Aug 2024
4. Additional Staff (9 FTEs) $        940,000 4% 0.09 4% 1.52 2023-2024

Service Enhancement Options
5. Ann Arbor-Ypsilanti Express Service $        930,000 4% 0.07 3% 1.59 Aug 2024
6. Longer Hours of Operation Systemwide $     1,901,000 9% 0.15 6% 1.74 Aug 2024
7. Increase Weekend Frequency Systemwide $     1,996,000 9% 0.14 6% 1.88 Aug 2024
8. Expand Overnight Service (Ypsi Twp & Ypsi) $     1,066,000 5% 0.09 4% 1.97 Aug 2024
9. Customer Service Agents (Ypsi Transit Center) $        184,000 1% 0.01 0% 1.98 2023-2024
10. Funding Major Capital Projects $     3,200,000 15% 0.40 17% 2.38 2024

Totals $ 21,897,000 2.38

*Total gross costs for each element are paid for with a differing mixture of local taxes, fares, and State 
subsidies. The net mill rate reflects only the local tax cost. The two figures are not directly comparable on 
this table.

**Dates are tentative. New funding will not arrive until July 2024. During 2023, staff would conduct the 
necessary planning, public involvement, regulatory clearances (Title VI), and make operational 
arrangements. Some staffing positions may start before the new services.

Descriptions of Millage Elements

The following pages describe each proposed element in detail. The elements are categorized as 
either Essential Elements or Service Enhancement Options.

Maintain Existing Services

The following items (1-4) are directly related to maintaining existing transit services:

1. Renewal (0.70 mills - $5.6 million) – TheRide’s current service depends on a 0.70 mill
property levy. The levy was first approved in 2014, overwhelmingly renewed in 2018, 
and naturally expires in 2023. Maintaining these funds is crucial to maintaining current 
services. If this funding is not renewed before 2024, TheRide will need to reduce 
services in order to balance the budget.

2. Deficit (0.60 mills - $4.8 million) – The original 0.7 mill levy approved in 2014 did not
generate enough revenue to cover the costs of new services introduced in 2013-2015, 
nor the strong growth in demand for services like paratransit. This has created an 
ongoing structural deficit. When the deficit was discovered in 2017, TheRide decided to 
cut internal costs rather than reduce services or raise taxes or fares. The 0.7 mill rate

4

Cumulative



was renewed in 2018. However, although this has delayed the onset of the deficit, 
updated forecasts show that without additional funds, deficit spending or service cuts will 
be needed as early as 2025 (FY2022 Budget, page 11-13). Meanwhile, internal staff 
reductions have reduced the organization’s capacity at a time when the community 
expectations are increasing. For more information on the deficit, click here. This 0.60 mill 
addition will add enough revenue to resolve the underfunding of services.

3. Inflation (0.13 mills - $1.28 million) – TheRide faces the same volatile inflationary
pressures as other organizations. Historically, although property-tax revenue has grown 
(although constrained by State law), revenue from fares has not grown, and federal and 
state grants have not kept up with inflation. This leaves TheRide exposed to 1%-1.5% of 
uncovered inflationary costs per year. TheRide has not increased its tax rate since 2014. 
Recently, per unit costs for fuel, salaries, insurance, and many other necessities have 
risen and are expected to continue to increase by over 3% annually. Staff will continue to 
work to control costs and increase productivity, but an inflationary adjustment is 
necessary to maintain services. This 0.13 mill addition will help TheRide to maintain 
services in the face of ongoing inflationary pressures.

4. Additional Staff (0.09 mills - $940,000) – Since 2015, the number of administrative
staff positions has decreased by 9%. While TheRide has a dedicated and talented 
workforce, burnout is becoming a concern. To fully meet today’s expectations, remain an 
attractive employer, and prepare for growth, the CEO is requesting funding to increase 
staffing by 9 full-time positions: four operational/supervisory positions, and five office 
positions. The costs are for additional salary and benefits.

Service Enhancement Options

The following are options for new or expanded services. The options could be implemented 
individually or as a group and are presented in a loose descending priority.

5. Ann Arbor-Ypsilanti Express Service (0.07 mills - $930,000/year) – This initiative
would create a new bus route along Washtenaw Avenue between downtown Ann Arbor 
and downtown Ypsilanti. It will reduce terminal-to-terminal travel times from 45 minutes 
to about 30 minutes. By reducing travel times, this route would effectively bring the two 
downtowns closer together. This service would be especially important for labor mobility, 
access to education, and access to social, medical, and shopping needs. It would run 
weekdays from 6am to 6pm, with a frequency of 30 minutes, and be in addition to 
regular local service on Washtenaw Ave. In addition to the downtown terminals there 
would be just four intermediate stops: EMU, Golfside Rd, Arborland Mall, and U-M 
Central Campus as illustrated below:

6. Longer Hours of Operation Systemwide (0.15 mills - $1,901,000) – Later evening
service creates more opportunities for riders to reach jobs, classes, and other 
destinations that would otherwise be out of reach. It is especially valuable to workers 
and employers, those without cars, and those who wish to live a car-free lifestyle. This
initiative would extend evening and weekend hours of operation across the fixed-route
service area. Public consultation and planning during 2023 will determine whether this 
should be delivered by fixed-route or TheRide’s ride-hailing service, FlexRide.

7. Increase Weekend Frequency Systemwide (0.14 mills - $1,996,000) – Frequent bus 
service is one of the chief factors in attracting more people to transit. It is also liberating

5

https://www.theride.org/media/1154/download?inline
https://annarborobserver.com/articles/goodbye__hybrids.html#.YhkzvujMJPY


for seniors, people with disabilities, and those who cannot drive as it greatly increases 
their flexibility and independence. This initiative would make bus service more frequent 
(from every 60 minutes to every 30 minutes) on Saturdays and Sundays until 6pm.

8. Expand Overnight Service into Ypsilanti Twp and All of the City of Ypsilanti (0.09 -
$1,066,000/year) – TheRide’s overnight service, NightRide, efficiently transports people 
to work and other opportunities during late-night hours. NightRide helps promote a car- 
free lifestyle by providing late-night options and mobility for those who cannot drive. 
Presently NightRide runs from 11:45pm until 6am the next day, varying by day of week. 
Historically, this service has only been offered in Ann Arbor and parts of Ypsilanti. This 
initiative would extend NightRide to cover all of the City of Ypsilanti, and Ypsilanti 
Township north of Textile Road. This improvement will increase equity and labor mobility 
while improving reliability and reducing wait times.

9. Customer Service Agents at Ypsilanti Transit Center (0.01 mills - $104,000/year,
$80,000 one-time refurbishment costs) – This initiative improves equity by staffing the 
Ypsilanti bus terminal, as is already done in Ann Arbor. These funds would be used to 
hire two additional customer services agents to staff the Ypsilanti Transit Center (YTC) 
during regular business hours on weekdays. All services available at the Ann Arbor 
terminal (fare sales, photos and passes, general questions, etc.) would then be available 
at the YTC. The YTC office space would also be refurbished to be equivalent with the 
Ann Arbor terminal space. Having staff on-site will help grow ridership and increase 
customer satisfaction.

10. Funding Major Capital Projects (0.40 mills - $3,200,000/year) – Overall, the Long-
Range Plan has identified over $200 million in unmet capital needs for various 
infrastructure projects. While federal and state grants can help, TheRide will need to 
provide significant local matching funds, or we will not be competitive for outside grants. 
Over 5 years, this element would add $16 million in capital funding to help advance 
major transit projects. Adding a capital set-aside in the millage allows us to slowly accrue 
local capital funds over time and better utilize outside funding.

By replacing certain federal funds with new local funds TheRide can: A) maximize capital 
funding, B) advance major capital projects sooner, C) increase our chances of winning 
major construction grants, D) maximize local capital dollars, and E) reduce risk.

A. By adding local tax dollars to pay for operations, we can shift a portion of 5307
funds back to capital. MDOT will add 20% to every federal dollar used for capital. 

B. Due to limited capital funding, TheRide presently needs to pursue competitive
federal grants to conduct project planning work. These grants are highly
competitive and uncertain. TheRide has not been able to win such competitive 
grants in many years. Using 5307 funds instead would allow us to conduct such 
planning sooner and by using existing federal and State funds. Presently, there is 
$25 million of planning and land acquisition costs in the 10-Year Capital Plan for 
projects such as terminals, BRT, a garage, and zero-emissions propulsion. Over 
five years, these new funds would allow us to pursue these projects without 
waiting for competitive grants.

C. By using federal and State funds to conduct planning and land acquisition, we
lower the cost of the final federal construction grant request. A lower price tag 
increases the chances of winning large federal infrastructure grants.

6



D. The best use of local capital funds is as the 50% match for major federal
construction grants. The changes above conserve these flexible local funds so 
they can help fund construction projects in the future.

E. Using 5307 funds for operations creates risks. The federal government intended
these funds for capital, not operations. If TheRide applies for competitive federal 
capital grants in the future, we may be refused based on how we are using 5307 
now. In addition, although Michigan DOT (MDOT) presently matches 5307 funds 
with additional state operations funding, MDOT can change those rules at any 
time, leaving TheRide exposed to a sudden drop in operating revenue.

This initiative will maximize the funding available for major projects like bus rapid transit, 
expanded terminals, a new garage, and a zero-emissions fleet. These projects are in- 
line with the emerging Long-Range Plan and existing 10-Year Capital Plan but may be 
adjusted as circumstances warrant. For example, if TheRide received more earmark 
funding for planning activities, more of these funds could go directly to construction.

A larger local investment in public transit magnifies outside funding. For every $1 in local tax 
investment, TheRide collects another $1.40 in federal and State transit formula grants. All those 
funds are directly invested in our communities and residents. On average 1.0 mill would cost a 
property owner an additional $187/year in Ann Arbor, $66 in Ypsilanti, and $76 in Ypsilanti Twp, 
per $100,000 of assessed value. For context, 1.0 mill would generate about $8 million per year.

7



Attachment 2: Rationale for Timing and Referendum Date
This section outlines the CEO’s rationale for pursuing additional investment now, as well as for 
a specific referendum date in August of 2022.

Timing Rationale: 2024-2028

There are several reasons why an enhanced millage referendum is being proposed for 2022:

1. 5-Year Millages: By State law, TheRide can only seek 5-year millages and can only
hold one referendum per calendar year. Funding from the existing millage will run out in 
2024.  If TheRide were not successful in 2022, we could hold a second referendum in 
2023 without any disruption to cashflow or services. Due to tax assessment deadlines, 
Fall 2023 is the latest that TheRide could seek replacement funding for 2024. If this 
deadline were missed, funding would run out in 2024 and services would likely need to 
be reduced.

2. Urgency: The need for improved public transit is growing. As the pandemic recedes,
the need for travel is rebounding. Key groups of customers such as seniors, persons 
with low incomes or disabilities, students, and others require affordable access even 
more than before. Parking will become a challenge again as the UM continues to grow 
and our downtowns rebound. Finally, all the policy goals for transit (e.g. social equity, 
environmental benefits, serving an ageing population, access to affordable housing, 
labor mobility, etc) are becoming more urgent each year.

3. Helping Community Rebound: As the pandemic wanes many people will need to
establish new travel patterns and will be looking for new options. This is an ideal 
moment to upgrade transit services and gain new riders. Waiting until the next millage 
cycle (2029-2033) will certainly be too late to help the community post-pandemic. From 
a timing standpoint, 2022-2024 is a window of opportunity to grow our ridership and be 
a greater service to people throughout our communities.

4. Implementation: If a higher millage is approved in 2022 or 2023, new funds will arrive
in mid-2024. Transit services require a long lead time to arrange. Having certainty about 
future funding will allow TheRide to use 2023 to make the necessary arrangements.

TheRide’s ridership has already begun to return, quickly reaching 50% of pre-pandemic levels 
by October 2021. As demand for travel returns, it is essential that TheRide be ready with 
improved services.

Referendum Date Rationale

The CEO feels that it will be much easier and less expensive to educate voters during the 
August 2022 election rather than in November 2022. The August election has only primary 
races (local, state, federal), and we are not aware of any other ballot measures.

In contrast, the November election addresses highly contentious federal and State issues: 
control of the House of Representatives and the Governorship, and there are reportedly 12 
statewide ballot measures vying to be on the November ballot covering issues such as voting 
rights, term limits, and abortion rights. These contests will be loud, passionate and expensive, 
and small local ballot measures will struggle to educate voters amid the cacophony.

8

https://www.mlive.com/public-interest/2022/02/here-are-all-the-proposals-vying-to-get-on-the-ballot-this-year.html
https://www.mlive.com/public-interest/2022/02/here-are-all-the-proposals-vying-to-get-on-the-ballot-this-year.html


Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk
Residential Services 

Department
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDG

Trustees
JOHN P. NEWMAN

GLORIA PETERSON
DEBBIE SWANSON
JIMMIE  WILSON JR.

7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI  48197

ytown.org

MEMORANDUM
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees

From:  Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director
Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk
John Hines, Recreation Director
Travis McDugald, Information Systems Manager

Date:  March 29, 2022

RE:   Work Session Presentation for the Rebranding of Ypsilanti Township

The Board of Trustees previously approved an agreement to work with the M3 Group at the 
September 21, 2021 Board of Trustees meeting to assist in rebranding the Township.  Since then, 
Township staff have been working hard to make this a reality.  The M3 process included in depth 
community research, community engagement, discussion boards, competitive analysis and creative 
briefs to assist in developing a new brand.  This brand is not just a logo, but also a deliverable style 
guide, a new tagline and new mission and vision statements.

The staff project team includes Mike Hoffmeister, Heather Jarrell Roe, John Hines and Travis 
McDugald.  Staff and the M3 Group are excited to present to the Board of Trustees our work and 
logo options for the rebranding of the Township.

Mike Hoffmeister
Residential Services Director
mhoffmeister@ytown.org
734-544-3515

E

 
 

mailto:mhoffmeister@ytown.org


Ypsilanti Township Rebrand Presentation



Agenda

• M3 Group Introductions
• Our Process
• Tagline & Logo Presentation 
• Next Steps
• Questions



Introductions

M3 Group is a full-service branding, marketing, public relations and advertising agency 
headquartered in the heart of downtown Lansing. Formed in 2002, the agency has 
grown to three offices and 24 employees. Focused on integrating disciplines to provide 
clients the most effective strategy possible, M3 Group thrives on fully understanding 
the challenge, developing a strategy to meet the need and implementing the tactics 
necessary to show results.
Your Team:
• Sean Hickey, Chief Marketing Strategist
• Melissa DeMott, Client Strategist
• Penny Spehar, Senior Content Strategist
• Kathryn Aspin, Creative Visionary



Our Process

• We use our trademarked M3 Method
that delivers exceptional results when
followed fully. This system brings the
power of understanding, strategy
development and implementation to
every client.

• Magnify
• Motivate
• Mobilize



Our phased 
approach gives us 
an opportunity to 
discover everything 
we need to know 
about you and the 
competitive 
landscape through 
our initial Magnify
phase.



What that looked like for Ypsilanti Township

Primary Research — Interviews (Delivered)
• Discussion Boards

o Monday, Nov. 8, through Friday, Nov. 12, 2021.
o Engaged business and nonprofit/ faith leaders as well as employees and residents from and around the

township.
o Depth Interviews
o Conducted eight depth interviews.
o Participants included trustees, leadership and key staff.
o The participants were asked similar questions as the discussion board participants, but the interview setting

allowed the participants to expand on their replies in greater detail.
Secondary Research — Competit ive Analysis (Delivered)
• Researched Ypsilanti Township and its surrounding communities and their branding, web and social properties, and

demographics. We used this information as a point of comparison to identify Ypsilanti Township's strengths and
weaknesses relative to each competitor and drive message development.

o Pittsfield
o Superior
o Van Buren 
o York



We then create 
systems and 
products needed 
to embrace and 
enhance strategy 
through our
Motivate phase.



What that looked like for Ypsilanti Township

Brand Messaging (Delivered)

• Brand descriptors — What Ypsilanti Township is or is not.

• Key differentiators — The main points that set Ypsilanti Township apart from its competitors.

• Unique Value Proposition — The one thing that sets the organization apart from all other competitors.

• Audience segmentation.

• URL recommendation.

• Tagline development.

• Update mission and vision statements.

Creative Brief (Delivered)

• Used by the M3 Group team and approved of by the Ypsilanti Township rebranding team.

• Connects findings from the competitive analysis, research and brand messaging into one reference document used to
inform the creative approach and delivery of new logos, taglines and seal.



What that looked like for Ypsilanti Township

Implementat ion Strategy (Delivered)

• A plan to document, manage and prioritize all the internal, external and administrative aspects, as well as costs, that go
into rolling out a new brand.

• Guidance on protecting your investment.
o Use of the logos and taglines contribute to a municipality’s unique character and the outside world’s

perception of that municipality, as well as licensing opportunities that could lead to revenue from their use.
Now, because the township invested significant resources into its new logo and tagline, it should take steps to
protect its investment by trademarking and copyrighting them.

Style Guide (In process)

• An instruction manual on how the new brand should be communicated. It contains the standards required to
represent your brand correctly, both internally and externally.



Finally, we 
continue our 
approach and 
enact our Mobilize
phase through the
monthly execution 
of deliverables, 
allowing for 
amazing KPIs and 
return on 
investment.



Tagline & Logo



Tagline: Discover Your Roots

Discover Your Roots

• Active voice

• History put Ypsilanti Township on the map, but now discover our trails, lake, community and the future.

• It ’s a nice balance between the past and the future.

Desired Outcomes
What do you want the audience to THINK about the key message/product?

Ypsilanti Township is a place where they belong.

What do you want the audience to FEEL about the key message/product?
Pride in their community.

What do you want the audience to DO with the key message/product?
We want residents to be inspired to get out to explore and connect with their community more actively. We 
want potential residents and businesses to consider Ypsilanti Township as a new place to live or start /grow a 
business.



Logo Option 1















Logo Option 2















Logo Options







Questions?



REVIEW AGENDA

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD
MEETING AGENDA



OTHER DISCUSSION

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES



Ch a r t er  T ow n sh ip  of  Y p si la n t i
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197

SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE • TREASURER STAN
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • DEBBIE SWANSON •
JIMMIE WILSON, JR.

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2022

7:00 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (THREE MINUTES PER PERSON)

4. CONSENT AGENDA

A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 5, 2022 IN THE AMOUNT OF
$2,187,664.58

5. ATTORNEY REPORT

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE

NEW BUSINESS

1. RESOLUTION 2022-05, TO CHANGE A PLATTED LOT BOUNDARY LINE IN
WASHTENAW CLUBVIEW SUBDIVISION LOT 6, DIVIDING THE ORIGINAL INTO TWO 
AS A RESULT OF A LOT SPLIT

2. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE A MASSEY FERGUSON TRACTOR FROM
DIUBLE EQUIPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $31,346.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-
770-977-000 CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT

3. REQUEST TO APPROVE ADDENDUM #2 TO THE AGREEMENT WITH COMMUNITY
PUBLISHING AND MARKETING  FOR THE TOWNSHIP BROCHURE IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $16,595.00 BUDGET IN LINE ITEMS #226-528-900-000, #230-754-880-000 AND 
#101-267-900-000

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD
COMMISSION FOR THE 2022 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$64,085.08 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-446-982-000 CONTINGENT UPON 
APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT

5. REQUEST TO FORMALLY APPROVE A TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT LETTER WITH THE
LAW FIRM OF KERR, RUSSELL AND WEBER , PLC BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101- 
729-801-024

6. REQUEST TO APPOINT GAGE ADAMS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION FOR A
TERM ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023



7. BUDGET AMENDMENT #5

OTHER BUSINESS

BOARD MEMBER UPDATES

Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  April 5, 2022



PUBLIC COMMENTS



CONSENT AGENDA



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION

Clerk Jarrell Roe called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00pm in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township.

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo and Treasurer Stan Eldridge
Trustees: John Newman II, Gloria Peterson, and Debbie 
Swanson

Members Absent:  Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe and Trustee Jimmie Wilson

Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments given.

AGENDA

1. RECYCLE GRANTS DISCUSSION………………..….MICHAEL HOFFMEISTER

2. HURON ST. AND DTE LIGHTS………………………MICHAEL HOFFMEISTER

3. AGENDA REVIEW……………………………..……………SUPERVISOR STUMBO

RECYCLE GRANTS DISCUSSION…..…….…………..…MICHAEL HOFFMEISTER

Michael Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director, spoke about three grants the 
township will be receiving to pay for recycling carts for residents. Mr. Hoffmeister 
stated there would be marketing to residents in regard to the carts and recycling. 
He added they are hoping to start delivering the carts in May or June.

Treasurer Eldridge asked about issues with the new can and residents who may 
have trouble maneuvering them. Mr. Hoffmeister stated residents would be able 
to request a smaller cart.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION
PAGE 2

Trustee Newman asked about residents who are already renting a recycling cart. 
Mr. Hoffmeister answered that they are still working that out but residents who 
are renting now will not have to pay in the future.

Supervisor Stumbo stated she would like to see a plan in place for rolling out the 
carts before the grants are approved.

HURON ST. AND DTE LIGHTS………………………MICHAEL HOFFMEISTER

Michael Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director provided an update to the 
streetlights on Huron St. that will be partnership with the City of Ypsilanti. He 
stated that twenty nine (29) streetlights will be in phase one and twenty one (21) 
streetlights in phase 2. Mr. Hoffmeister stated the DTE agreements will come back 
to the board.

Trustee Swanson asked about banner boards for the streetlights. Mr. Hoffmeister 
agreed that is a great idea.

Discussion continued on the pathway that is being constructed and how it will 
benefit citizens that are traveling the area.

Mr. Hoffmeister reviewed the intergovernmental agreement the City of Ypsilanti 
for maintenance of the trail. He added the city will be responsible for snow 
removal and the township will be responsible for mowing.

Trustee Swanson asked about having an area that is not mowed to allow plants to 
grow. Mr. Hoffmeister responded that they do have a map from MDOT outlining 
what areas can be mowed.

Trustee Newman asked about an electrical mower. Mr. Hoffmeister responded 
they had just viewed some at a trade show that are supposed to last an 8 hour 
work day, depending on the size of the grass. He added that they are more 
expensive up front but would make up the extra cost.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION
PAGE 3

AGENDA REVIEW……………………………..……………SUPERVISOR STUMBO

CONSENT AGENDA

Supervisor Stumbo stated she had given changes to the minutes to Clerk Jarrell 
Roe.

ATTORNEY REPORT

Attorney Winters stated he would give the attorney report during the regular 
meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

1st READING OF RESOLUTION 2022-03, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2022-499, TO 
AMEND THE TOWNSHIP FIREWORK ORDINANCE

Supervisor Stumbo discussed the change to the ordinance to include the 
Juneteenth holiday. She stated that this had been discussed at a previous work 
session and the request for this had been motivated by residents who had asked 
last year about fireworks for the holiday. Supervisor Stumbo stated that the 
Juneteenth holiday would be observed the same that New Year’s Eve and New 
Year’s Day are observed.

Fire Chief Eric Copeland asked if the Juneteenth holiday would always be on a 
specific day of the week. Supervisor Stumbo replied that the holiday can fall on any 
day of the week.

REQUEST TO APPROVE THE UPDATED RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION 
AND APPROVE INTERIM DIRECTOR, JOHN HINES, TO THE POSITION OF 
RECREATION DIRECTOR



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION
PAGE 4

Karen Wallin, HR Manager stated that the needs of the Recreation Department 
were reviewed and it was decided to reopen the Recreation Director’s position 
with some updates.

Trustee Eldridge asked if the position would report to the Residential Services 
Director or to the Supervisor. Ms. Wallin answered that it would be a combination.

Trustee Eldridge expressed concern about the job title and having a director report 
to a director. Supervisor Stumbo stated there would be instances where the 
Recreation Director would step in for the Residential Services Director if necessary. 
Ms. Wallin added that the job description could be updated to report to the 
Supervisor.

Discussion continued regarding the different departments that are supervised by 
the Residential Services Director.

Supervisor Stumbo stated that she thought it was important to keep the Recreation 
Director title so that residents would know who to contact for that department.

Trustee Peterson confirmed that all issues would ultimately come to the Supervisor 
if a director was not available to handle it.

Trustee Peterson asked if this job was posted. Ms. Wallin stated that he was 
appointed as interim Recreation Director and had all the qualifications that would 
be required for the position.

Trustee Swanson stated that she is concerned about communication and the 
working relationship with the Park Commission with a change in representatives. 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that Mr. Hoffmeister would still be available to attend 
meetings and act as liaison.

REQUEST TO APPROVE THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP CDBG APPLICATION FOR 2022

Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director stated that these CDBG funds will 
be directed toward Appleridge Park to replace play items and the walking area.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION
PAGE 5

REQUEST TO FORMALLY APPROVE FORBES STAGING SITE AT 1600 DAVIS

Attorney Winters stated that Clerk Jarrell Roe had been talking to EGLE about using 
the property at 1600 Davis. He added that site will have to be restored from any 
damage and insurance has been provided.

REQUEST TO APPROVE A LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 
1830 AND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI TO APPOINT STEVE WALLGREN 
AS TEMPORARY FIRE MARSHAL

Eric Copeland, Fire Chief, detailed the history of the updates to the Fire Marshal 
position.

Chief Copeland stated that Steve Wallgren expressed interest in the Fire Marshal 
position in October 2020. He added that at this time he has attained certification in 
Fire Inspection I and Plan Review and that he is ready to test for Fire Inspection II. 
Chief Copeland said that Steve Wallgren has been moved to forty hours per week 
and has been working with Dan Kimball for training.

Trustee Peterson asked how long until the certifications will be completed. Chief 
Copeland said he would be ready to take the tests this month. Trustee Peterson 
confirmed that the union was supportive of moving Steve Wallgren into the 
position temporarily until he has his certifications. Zac Roland, Local 1830 
President, answered that the union is in support.

Ms. Wallin added that she expects Mr. Wallgren to have his final certification 
within the next four weeks.

Budget Amendment #14

Supervisor Stumbo reviewed the budget amendment.

Other Business

There is no other business.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION
PAGE 6

Board Member Updates

Supervisor Stumbo discussed a meeting that was held with AAATA about their 
millage proposal and said there is another meeting scheduled for Thursday, March 
17. She added this tax increase would be for the township, City of Ypsilanti and the 
City of Ann Arbor.

Supervisor Stumbo discussed how this millage proposal had been discussed during 
a presentation by the president of AAATA during a previous work session. She 
detailed how the board expressed they would not be in favor of a millage increase 
at that time.

Attorney Winters talked about provisions that are in place in the current 
agreement the township has with AAATA. He stated that the first provision 
indicates that both the township and the AAATA would have discussions and 
negotiations for items that are disputed for a financial reason and other reasons 
listed in the agreement. Attorney Winters stated that he didn’t believe AAATA 
should have rolled out this millage plan without discussion and negotiations with 
the municipalities.

Attorney Winters stated that this might be an appropriate time for the board to 
issue a strongly worded resolution against the millage increase being requested by 
AAATA. He added that a resolution would be the best way for the board to convey 
their collective opposition to the millage increase.

Treasurer Eldridge stated that he did not believe the AAATA was hearing the 
opinion of the board on the millage increase. He added that it may be best for the 
township to withdraw from the contract with the AAATA and utilize ala carte 
services in the same manner as Pittsfield and Superior Townships.

Trustee Newman stated that he was in agreement with Treasurer Eldridge and did 
not want to see the residents imposed with this tax increase after all the hard work 
by the township to keep taxes at the same level.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 WORK SESSION
PAGE 7

Supervisor Stumbo stated that there is a petition being circulated about the zoning 
amendment at Kroger and that they have been going door to door. She stated an 
intent to submit to file the petitions was filed with the Clerk’s Office and the 
petitions are due within 30 days, which would be March 26.

Supervisor Stumbo stated there have been requests made to get more information 
about the language on the petitions but nothing has been submitted.

The Work Session meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:56pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk
Charter Township of Ypsilanti



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00PM in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent 
prayer.

Members Present:  Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe, and
Treasurer Stan Eldridge
Trustees: Gloria Peterson, John Newman II, Debbie Swanson
and Jimmie Wilson Jr.

Members Absent:  None

Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments.

3. CONSENT AGENDA

A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 1, 2022 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MARCH 15, 2022 IN THE AMOUNT
OF $911,981.37

2. CLARITY HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR FEBRUARY 2022 IN
THE AMOUNT OF $69,308.98

3. CLARITY HEALTH CARE ADMIN FE FOR FEBRUARY 2022 IN THE
AMOUNT OF $1,308.69

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve the consent agenda.

The motion passed unanimously.

ATTORNEY REPORT

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE

Attorney Winters discussed the township PILOT tax ordinance with Clark East
Towers and that it will expire in February 2028. He stated that he believed it would
be a good idea to begin discussions on renewing this in the summer due to rising
housing costs.

NEW BUSINESS

1. 1st READING OF RESOLUTION 2022-03, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2022-499
TO AMEND THE FIREWORK ORDINANCE



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
PAGE 2

Clerk Jarrell Roe read the resolution into the record.

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the 1st reading of resolution 2022-03, proposed ordinance 2022-499, to 
amend the township firework ordinance (please see attached).

Supervisor Stumbo stated this was discussed at the Mach 1, 2022 meeting. She 
added that the language is in line with New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day 
fireworks requirements.

A roll call vote was held. Motion carried unanimously.

2. REQUEST FOR THE BOARD TO CONSIDER THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF YPSILANTI

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Trustee Wilson to 
approve an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Ypsilanti (please see 
attached).

Supervisor Stumbo stated this was the agreement to maintain the bridge area over 
I-94 and that the city would take of snow removal and the township would mow.

The motion carried unanimously.

3.  REQUEST TO APPROVE UPDATED RECREATION DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION
AND APPROVE INTERIM DIRECTOR JOHN HINES, TO THE POSITION OF
RECREATION DIRECTOR

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the updated recreation director job description and approve interim 
director John Hines to the position of Recreation director.

Supervisor Stumbo stated this was discussed at the work session and that clarity 
would be provided as far as working with the Park Commission and work flows.

The motion carried unanimously.

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP CDBG APPLICATION FOR 2022

A motion was made by Trustee Swanson and seconded by Trustee Wilson to 
approve to approve the Ypsilanti Township CDBG Application for 2022.

Supervisor Stumbo stated this for a Community Development Block Grant that was 
originally intended to be allocated for Washtenaw Ave. She added these are 
federal funds that come to the county and are administered through the county.

Supervisor Stumbo said these funds would be used to replace items in the parks.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
PAGE 3

The motion carried unanimously.

5. REQUEST TO FORMALLY APPROVE FORBES STAGING SITE AT 1600 DAVIS
STREET

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve the Forbes staging site at 1600 Davis Street.

Supervisor Stumbo stated this is for the old Forbes Dry Cleaners site which is being 
cleaned up by EGLE and the State of Michigan for equipment to be parked.

The motion carried unanimously.

6. REQUEST TO APPROVE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN FIREFIGHTERS
LOCAL 1830 AND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI TO APPOINT 
STEVE WALLGREN AS TEMPORARY FIRE MARSHAL

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and seconded by Trustee Wilson to 
approve the letter of agreement between firefighters Local 1830 and the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti to appoint Steve Wallgren as temporary fire marshal (please 
see attached).

Supervisor Stumbo stated she would like to thank Chief Copeland for his leadership 
to bring regional fire agreements and to bring the high level to the fire marshal 
position.

The motion carried unanimously.

7. BUDGET AMENDMENT #4

A motion was made Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Trustee Peterson to approve 
budget amendment #3 (please see attached).

The motion carried unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

There was no other business discussed.

BOARD MEMBER UPDATES

Clerk Jarrell Roe stated that the ARPA committee has met several times working to 
better understand the rules for the funds. She added that they have tentatively 
scheduled several days for community engagement.

Clerk Jarrell Roe stated the township had given out 15,000 masks with ARPA funds 
and 16,000 masks from the county. Supervisor Stumbo added there is a letter with 
the masks letting residents know they can also request test kits.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
PAGE 4

Trustee Swanson asked about the possibility of drafting a resolution in regard to 
the AAATA millage increase and how that would work.

Supervisor Stumbo stated if that was needed that would be something the 
attorney would be able to do.

Trustee Newman stated he thought withdrawing from AAATA services was 
mentioned.

Trustee Wilson said he was in agreement with the Board and was not in favor of a 
tax increase from AAATA.

Trustee Swanson discussed her disappointment with AAATA and other entities that 
are not working with the township. She also discussed her disappointment with 
how the township has been portrayed in some instances as not caring about its 
residents. Trustee Swanson stated that she believed the tax increase proposed by 
AAATA is not in the best interest of the residents.

Trustee Peterson asked what would happen if the township would withdraw from 
the contract with the AAATA. Treasurer Eldridge responded that the township 
could use services that they feel are needed in the same way of Pittsfield and 
Superior Townships.

Trustee Swanson spoke about the petitions that are being circulated in the 
township about the zoning ordinance and added that she would like to request the 
entity who is circulating the petitions to send the language as requested to the 
Clerk for the referendum.

Attorney Winters stated that he recommended the Board look at passing a 
resolution about the proposed millage increase by the AAATA. He also referenced 
the township’s contract with AAATA and the wording about negotiations if any side 
were to propose major changes.

Supervisor Stumbo stated she felt the board was in agreement against the tax 
increase proposed by AAATA.

Clerk Jarrell Roe added that she was appreciative of the opportunity for the board 
to be able to discuss this as a group and hear everyone’s opinion.

A motion was made by Trustee Wilson and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
Adjourn.

Motion carried unanimously.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2022 REGULAR BOARD 
MEETING
PAGE 5

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:53pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti



RESOLUTION 2022-04

Amending the Charter Township Code of Ordinances to 
Amend Section 42-210(b) Entitled “Prohibition on Use of

Consumer Fireworks”

Whereas, on February 15, 2022 Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 

Brenda L. Stumbo sent a Memorandum addressed to the “Charter

Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees” dated February 9, 2022 (a

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference) wherein 

she requested the Township Board to amend the Township’s “Fireworks

Ordinance” so as to allow individuals in the Township to discharge

fireworks within the Township on June 19 also known as the “Juneteenth

Holiday;” and

Whereas, Juneteenth is a Federal Holiday which recognizes and 

celebrates June 19, 1866 which is the first day that African Americans in 

Texas first learned of the “Emancipation Proclamation” which was more 

than two years from when it was initially issued by President Abraham 

Lincoln; and

Whereas, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees is in agreement

with the recommendation of the Ypsilanti Township Supervisor Brenda L. 

Stumbo that the Township’s Fireworks Ordinance be amended so as to



allow a person to “…ignite, discharge or use consumer fireworks

within the Township on Juneteenth of each year” commencing on 

June 19, 2022; and

Whereas, proposed Ordinance 2022-499 adds a new section (6) to 

Section 42-210(b) so as to allow persons in the Township to “ignite,

discharge or use consumer fireworks within the Township on June 19

after 11:00 a.m. until 1:00 a.m. on June 20,”

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Charter Township of

Ypsilanti Board of Trustees hereby adopts and incorporates by reference 

the attached Ordinance No. 2022-04 which Ordinance amends Section 42- 

210(b) of Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Code of Ordinances entitled 

“Fireworks” so as to allow persons in the Township to “ignite, discharge

or use consumer fireworks within the Township on June 19 after

11:00 a.m. until 1:00 a.m. on June 20.”



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-499
An Ordinance Amending the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Code of Ordinances
Entitled “Fireworks” and specifically Section 42-210(b) so as to Permit Persons 
to Ignite, Discharge or Use Consumer Fireworks within the Charter Township of

Ypsilanti on June 19 of Each Year Commencing on June 19, 2022
After 11:00 a.m. Until 1:00 a.m. on June 20

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby Ordains that Section 42-210(b)

of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Code of Ordinances entitled “Fireworks” is

amended as follows:

AMEND paragraph (b) entitled “Prohibition on Use of Consumer 

Fireworks” so as to allow a person to “Ignite, discharge or use consumer 

fireworks within the Township on Juneteenth of each year commencing 

on June 19, 2022.”

ADD new paragraph (6) to section (b) entitled “June 19 After 11:00 a.m.

Until 1:00 a.m. on June 20.”

Severability

Should any section, subsection, sentence or clause of this ordinance be

declared by the Courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any part thereof, other than the part that is invalidated.

Effective Date

This Ordinance shall be effective upon publication of a newspaper of general 

circulation as provided by law.

I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify approval of the first reading of Proposed Ordinance No. 2022-499 by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a regular meeting held on March 
15, 2022. The second reading is scheduled to be heard on April 19, 2022.

_______________________________ 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk

Charter Township of Ypsilanti



INTERGOVERENMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 

I-94 PEDESTRIAN OVERPASS MAINTENANCE

This agreement, pursuant to Act 35 of 1951, MCL 124.1 et seq.,  is by and
between the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan Charter Township (Township) 
with offices at  ____Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 and the City of Ypsilanti, a 
Michigan Home Rule City (City) with offices at 1 South Huron Street, Ypsilanti, MI 
48197 (the parties).

Background

Interstate highway I-94 runs east and west and is generally on the municipal 
boundary between the Township on the south and the City on the north. The parties 
worked with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) to have a pedestrian 
overpass installed over I-94 between the boundary of the parties.  The parties have 
agreed on maintenance items for the overpass, such as snow removal, grass cutting 
and the like.  This agreement sets out the agreement of the parties.

Agreement

1. The Township shall provide weekly grass cutting service of the areas north and
south of the Huron Street/Interstate-94 area as depicted on Exhibit A.  This 
agreement shall not require the Township to cut any protected areas as designated 
by the Michigan Department of Transportation.

2. The City shall provide snow removal within the City limits on the north side of the
bridge, on the pedestrian bridge, and south of the bridge to James L Hart Parkway 
as depicted on Exhibit B.

3. The Township of shall be responsible for any other maintenance and repair of the
pathway within the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) right of way 
which is located within the municipal boundaries of the Township, unless otherwise 
specified by the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT).

4. The City of Ypsilanti shall be responsible for any other maintenance and repair of
the pathway within the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) right of way 
which is located within the municipal boundaries of the City, unless otherwise 
specified by the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT).

5. Any costs of repairs and maintenance in which the scope of the repair or
maintenance work is within both the City and the Township, shall be shared by both 
municipalities with each paying the specific cost of the repair and maintenance 
which occurred within the boundaries of their respective municipality.

6. Insurance. Neither party shall indemnify the other and each party shall obtain and
maintain insurance to protect their own interests.



7. Term. The term of this agreement is 25 years and the term may be renewed by the
parties for additional terms.

8. Disputes. Any disputes concerning this agreement, terms or enforcement shall first
be mediated according to the Michigan Court Rules and the rules of the Washtenaw 
Circuit Court, before any other action is taken.

9. Notice.  All notices concerning this agreement shall be served on the Township
Supervisor, the City Manager, Township and City Attorneys and the head of the 
public service department of each party.

Dated:  January ___,2022

So, Agreed:
Charter Township of Ypsilanti

By:_________________________ 
Township Supervisor

By:_________________________ 
Township Clerk

City of Ypsilanti

By:_________________________ 
Mayor

By:_________________________ 
City Clerk

Approved as to form:

_______________________
John M. Barr, City Attorney





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT #4

March 15, 2022

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR

230- RECREATION FUND Total Increase $4,725.00

Request to increase budget for an increase of salary for the newly appointed Recreation Director position upon
Board approval.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 230-000-699.999 $4,725.00

Net Revenues $4,725.00

Expenditures: Salary & Wage 230-754-705.000 $4,203.00
FICA 230-754-715.000 $322.00
MERS 230-754-718.000 $200.00

Net Expenditures $4,725.00

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2022 Budget (#4)

Move to increase the Recreation Fund budget by $4,725 to $721,335 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined.











ATTORNEY REPORT

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE



NEW BUSINESS



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

Resolution No. 2022-05

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE DIVISION OF A PLATTED LOT

Resolution authorizing the division of platted lots in Washtenaw Club View Subdivision

WHEREAS, the owner of a Lot 6, of Washtenaw Club View Subdivision has made a request to 
split a lot as previously approved and recorded; and

WHEREAS,  Township ordinance no. 2000-243, Article IX, Section 11.01 states that “Upon the
filing of a petition, by the owner or owners of all interest therein, with the Township Board, the platted
lots, outlot, or parcels of land in existing recorded plats may be partitioned or divided upon resolution of 
the Township Board into not more than four (4) parts, each of which shall, in regard to width, depth and 
area, conform to the terms and provisions of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Zoning Ordinance, as 
amended; and

WHEREAS, the Township Planning Department has reviewed the division and confirmed that 
the resulting parcels meet the minimum requirements for lot size and road frontage as set forth by 
Section 2000 of the Township Zoning Ordinance.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the revised property descriptions are approved as 
follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS:

PARCEL 1:

2600 VERNA ST

THE PORTION OF LOT 6 WASHTENAW CLUB VIEW SUBDIVISION THAT IS SOUTH OF THE NORTH 
118’ OF LOT 6 WASHTENAW CLUB VIEW SUBDIVISION

PARCEL 2:

2581 PACKARD RD

THE N 118’ OF LOT 6 WASHTENAW CLUB VIEW SUBDIVISION

Page 1 of 1



Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Assessor’s Office

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDGE

Trustees
JOHN P NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON
DEBBIE SWANSON

JIMMIE WILSON JR.
Ch a r t er  T ow n sh ip  of  Y p si la n t i

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 544-4000 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159

Date:   March 30, 2022

To:  Ypsilanti Township Board

From:  Brian McCleery
Deputy Assessor

Cc:  Jason Iacoangeli
Planning Director

Re: Request to approve Resolution 2022-05 to Change Platted Lot Boundary Line in
Washtenaw Club View Subdivision Lot 6, dividing the original lot into two as a
result of a lot split.

Parcel: 2600 Verna St.: Lot 6, Washtenaw Club View Subdivision 

New Parcels:

Parcel 1: 2600 Verna St.: The portion of lot 6 Washtenaw Club View Subdivision
that is South of the North 118’ of lot 6 Washtenaw Club View Subdivision

Parcel 2: 2581 Packard Rd.: The N 118’ of Lot 6 Washtenaw Club View 
Subdivision

The Assessor’s Office is requesting approval for the attached lot split as the change would 
generate an additional lot in a recorded plat.  The proposed lot split would divide lot 6 with each 
new parcel receiving a portion of the lot.

Ypsilanti Township’s local ordinance requires Township Board approval if there are any 
revisions to the original lot line in a recorded plat. This is required as the Board has already 
approved the original plat and the requested division is a revision to the previously approved 
boundaries

Staff Planner Fletcher Reyher has verified that the boundary line change will not create any non- 
conforming conditions.





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS
Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement

TO:   Collin Wagaman MCAO/Clerk, Charter Township of Ypsilanti

FROM:  Fletcher Reyher, Staff Planner

DATE:  March 15, 2022

RE:  Land Division Application
K-11-07-205-004 – 2600 Verna St.

Per your request, we have reviewed the request for a land division of the above parcel. 
We verify that the proposed land division complies with the Zoning and Division 
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti.

The parcel is zoned R-5 Single-Family Residential. The minimum lot size for this zoning 
district is 5,400 square feet. The proposed land division will leave the new parcel with 
7,080 square feet. Current R-5 Zoning District Standards require at least 50 feet in width 
(frontage) 20 feet front yard setbacks, 35 feet rear yard setbacks, and 5 feet side yard 
setbacks for a total of 16 feet. The proposed lot will have a width (frontage) of 60 feet. 
Any future development or home will need to follow the current zoning standards for the 
R-5 Zoning District. With all this said, the proposed lot meets all current zoning standards.
In addition, the current lot with an existing dwelling will conform to all current zoning 
standards with this proposed land division.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to 
contact me.

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943



Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Assessor’s Office

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDGE

Trustees
JOHN P NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON
DEBBIE SWANSON

JIMMIE WILSON JR.
Ch a r t er  T ow n sh ip  of  Y p si la n t i

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 544-4000 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159

MEMORANDUM

TO:  Jason Iacoangeli,
Planning Director

FROM: Collin Wagaman
MCAO/Clerk

DATE: March 14, 2022

RE:  Land Division Application

K-11-07-205-004 – 2600 Verna St.

An application for the division of the above parcels has been submitted to our office.

Please verify if this application complies with Zoning and Division Ordinances of the 
Township.

Attached are the Property Division Application, survey, and the aerial photo for the 
parcels.

If you have any questions, or need more information, please do not hesitate contacting 
me.

Attachments:
Application
Survey
Aerial Photo













Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk
Residential Services 

Department
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDG

Trustees
JOHN P. NEWMAN

GLORIA PETERSON
DEBBIE SWANSON
JIMMIE  WILSON JR.

7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI  48197

ytown.org

MEMORANDUM
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees

From:  Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director

CC:  Javonna Neel, Accounting Director

Date:  March 29, 2022

RE:   Request Authorization to purchase Massey Ferguson tractor from Diuble
Equipment for $31,346 budgeted in line #101-770-977.000

The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to purchase a Massey Ferguson 
tractor for the Parks & Grounds Department from Diuble Equipment for $31,346.

This tractor will replace an existing Ford tractor that we have had since the 1990’s.  This tractor’s 
rear hydraulic is deemed irreparable.  This tractor is used often to groom ball fields at Ford Lake 
Park and Ford Heritage Park and is vital for our parks.  Staff received the three quotes per the 
financial policy.

Diuble Equipment: $31,346
Plevna Implement Co:  $32,599
Wolverine Rental & Supply:  $38,771

This tractor is in stock and we issued an emergency Purchase Order, to hold it, contingent upon 
formal board approval.

Should there be any questions, please do not hesitate to ask at any time.

Mike Hoffmeister
Residential Services Director
mhoffmeister@ytown.org
734-544-3515

E

 
 

mailto:mhoffmeister@ytown.org














Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDGE

Trustees
JOHN NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON
DEBBIE SWANSON 
JIMMIE WILSON JR.

Recreation Department/
Community Center

2025 East Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Phone: (734)-544-3800
Fax: (734)-544-3888

ytownrec.org

MEMORANDUM

TO:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees

FROM:  John Hines, Recreation Director

CC:  Mike Hoffmeister – Residential Services Director
Doug Winters, Township Attorney

DATE:  March 30, 2022

RE: Request to approve Addendum #2 to the agreement with Community Publishing
& Marketing for Resident Magazine Mailer Services for $16,595.00 budgeted 
in lines #226-528-900.000, #230-754-880.000 and #101-267-900.000

The Recreation and Residential Services Departments are requesting the board of trustees approve the amendment 
to the existing agreement with Community publishing & Marketing related to the resident magazines.

At the February 2, 2021 regular Board of Trustees meeting, approval was granted to go into contract with 
Community Publishing and Marketing to create and mail a Township Magazine and Recreation Guide three times
a year. At the November 2, 2021 regular Board of Trustees meeting, Addendum 1 was passed due to add the trash
and recycling schedule magnet for the 2022 Helpful Handbook since it was not included within the original RFP.

This Addendum #2 is being requested of us due to the tumultuous supply chain issues within the paper industry 
that has created a paper allocation shortage and thus created a paper price increase nationwide.  This amendment 
reflects that increase for the next two (2) issues; Fall 2022 and Winter 2023 due to the volatility and significant 
paper price increase.

This amendment in the price of the magazines for the first edition of the Township Magazine and Recreation 
programming guide affects the 2022 budget while the Winter 2023 Handbook will only affect the 2023 Budget.

John Hines
Recreation Director



Community Publishing & Marketing
2021 Ypsilanti Lifestyle Magazine 

Prepared for the Ypsilanti Township

2021 Ypsilanti Lifestyle Magazine

Strategy

This marketing plan is to produce (create, design, layout, print, bind and mail) 3 full size full color 32 
page + 4 page cover magazines each year that showcases all of Ypsilanti to its community residences.  It 
is our mission and distinct honor to work hand and hand with the Ypsilanti Township and its 
Residential Services Department, to collaborate and formulate a production and marketing strategy 
that facilitates the entire production process for the 2021 Ypsilanti Lifestyle Magazine.

Specs:

15,500 magazines (approximately 15,000 mailing to residences of Ypsilanti Township per 
Township’s mailing list and/ or specifications) with postage being paid by Township. The 
balance will be carton packed and delivered to the township.
32 page + 4 page cover
Text:  60#  c2s gloss and/ or matte text
Cover:  80#  c2s Satin Cover with Satin/ Matte finish
4 color process throughout
8.5 x 11 trim (8.75 x 11.25 including 1/ 8” bleed all 4 sides)
Saddle stitch along the 11 dimensions (vertical pub)
CPM will print this project with a company of its choosing (parent company Printwell) 
Entire creation, design, layout will be a collaboration with Ypsilanti Township and CPM 
There will be no advertising in the publication at this time, however, CPM may be able to 
provide in the future and work out an appropriate deal with Township
CPM will utilize photos/ artwork provided by the Township for the magazine.
CPM will produce a Digital Version of the magazine that will be accessible for both Android and 
Apple devices as well as on the Township’s and CPM’s website.
The Ypsilanti Township will own all information and graphics/ artwork within the 2021
Magazine (this is a Ypsilanti Township project/ magazine and all content within the publication, the 
other material/ graphics/ information/ text/ etc. are township property and will not be used in any 
other context/ publication/ marketing material without written permission from the Ypsilanti 
Township).
Final layout will be approved by the Ypsilanti Township.

Page 2 of 3 (Ypsilanti/ CPM agreement 2021/  and 2022 amendment)



Though both parties should do their very best to work out any difficulties and/ or problems together, 
either party may opt out of the agreement with a minimum advance notice of 90 days prior to each 
scheduled mail date of the subsequent edition.

Total amount due per edition (3 editions per year, 2 in 2021): $10,452.50/  edition, ($31,357.50 per 
year). This will be a three-year agreement from February 2, 2021 – December 2023 (all of 2021,2022, 
& 2023)

***Addendum – December/ January issue 3 for 2021/ 22 will have 13pt 1 sided magnets (6” x 6” 4/ c 1 
side) affixed onto either page 3 or page 5 within the publication, detailing recycling information 
provided by township. The additional charge for the magnets (and affixing them within publication) 
will be approximately $9,547.50, thus totaling $20,000 for the December issue.

1. ****Addendum #2 (proposed February 8, 2022, and finalized February 18, 2022) – Due to the
tumultuous supply chain issues within our respective industry, there is a huge paper allocation 
shortage and thus, a paper increase for the next 3 issues for 2022 year (Spring/ Summer, Fall 
and Winter). Due to the volatility and significant increase, we would like to only amend the 
2022 year’s pricing and hold off next year to determine whether a portion of the increase can 
go down for the 2023 year… obviously too early to determine now, but gives us flexibility to 
take advantage of any cost decrease in future years. ** per email on February 16, 2022, 
between Mike Hoffmeister and Mark Fisher, we have agreed to: Honor the  next magazine  at 
the  original price  in the  bid, amend the  remaining magaz ines  for this  calendar year 
and then re -evaluate  from there .

Moving forward, the 2022 pricing will be:
$10,452.50 – Spring/ Summer edition
$13,500 – Fall edition
$24,000 – Winter edition (which will include magnet pricing, to the exact specifications as 2021 
addendum from the December/  January issue)

We will invoice approximately 30 days prior to each publication in order to assure prompt payment 
upon publication mailing/ shipping, as well as provide postage cost to customer from database 
information provided from customer, within 10 days of mailing for separate postage paid directly to 
USPS by Ypsilanti Township, in order to use township’s postage permit indicia.

Page 3 of 3 (Ypsilanti/ CPM agreement 2021/  and 2022 amendment)



Community Publishing & Marketing 
2021/ 22 Ypsilanti Lifestyle Magazine
Prepared for the Ypsilanti Township

2021/ 22 Ypsilanti Lifestyle Magazine/  Amendment 

Signatures:

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Township Supervisor, Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Date

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Township Clerk, Heather Jarrell Roe, Ypsilanti Township Date

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Director of Publishing Mark A. Fisher, Community Publishing & Marketing Date



Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk Supervisor
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDGE

Tru stees
MAN IIJOHN P.

GLORIA PETERSON

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0065 
Fax:  (734) 484-5160

ytown.org

DEBBIE S
JIMMIE W ILSON JR.

MEMORANDUM

TO:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board Members

FROM: Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor

DATE: March 30, 2022

RE: Washtenaw County 2022 First Road Agreement in the amount of
$64,085.08 account 101-446-982-000 contingent upon budget
amendment

Attached for the board’s consideration is the first road agreement with Washtenaw 
County Road Commission for $64,085.08.  The three full time officials met with 
the road commission and asked them to look at the township roads so they could 
let us know their pavement ratings before bringing back a second agreement.

Going door-to-door, it is clear that we have issues in some of the lowest 
opportunity areas that need infrastructure investment.  Some streets had no 
sidewalks, no curb, and lack of storm drainage causing flooding of driveways, 
sidewalks, and roads to crumble.  We also know that the West side of the township 
had extreme flooding of about 40 houses, as well as other areas of the township 
that need review for storm water management.  Evan Pratt, Water Resource 
Commissioner, and YCUA were looking at a study to identify the cause of the 
flooding and recommendations for coordinating funding from state, county and 
possible ARPA dollars.

This year is the last payment of $600,000 on the six million dollar road 
improvement bonds issued in 2013.   The board can discuss floating another road 
bond later this year or budget $600,000 annually for roads.   Once more detailed 
information regarding infrastructure improvement is available, we can start 
discussions regarding financing, budgeting, and prioritizing for the future.

Township

EWN
 

WANSON



2022 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2022, by and between the
Township Board of Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, parties of the first part and the Board of 
Washtenaw County Road Commissioners, parties of the second part.

WHEREAS, the parties of the first part desire that certain improvements be made upon the local roads 
in the Township of Ypsilanti, and

WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of the agreement under the provisions in Act 51 
of Public Acts of 1951 as amended,

IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED, the parties of the second part will accomplish the improvements 
as specified herein, all in accordance with the standards of the parties of the second part.

1. Dust Control (497-11-108):
Work to include placement of three (3) solid applications of contract brine on all certified local
gravel/limestone roads within the township.  Estimated 59,580 gallons @ $0.199 per gallon.
Estimated cost of contract brine: $     11,856.42

2. Additional Street Sweeping Services:
Work to include one (1) additional street sweepings on curbed local roads in Ypsilanti Township.
2022 Local Road Sweeping in Ypsilanti Township (one round) = 174.63 curb miles @ $98.00
per curb mile = $17,113.74 per round.
Estimated cost: $     17,113.74

3. Merritt Road, Munger Road to Stony Creek Road:
Work to include cracksealing.
Estimated project cost:  $     13,600.00

4. Section 2, Various Local Roads:
Work to include cracksealing.  Roads to include:

Emerson Avenue, Holmes Road to end of road
Outer Lane Drive, Holmes Road to end of road
Pasadena Avenue, Holmes Road to end of road
Wiard Road, Michigan Avenue to Holmes Road
Centennial Avenue, Clark Road to Holmes Road

Estimated project cost:  $     13,600.00

5. N. River Street, Clark Road to end of certification 0.12 miles southerly:
Work to include ditching, culvert replacement, milling the existing pavement, the placement of
2.5” HMA resurfacing, aggregate shoulders, and associated project restoration.
Estimated project cost:  $     51,300.00

6. Township-wide Limestone Resurfacing:
Work to include the application of 1,000 tons of 23a limestone with associated dust
control on various local roads within the township.  Locations to be determined by the
Township Supervisor and District Foreman.
Estimated project cost $     20,700.00



2022 Ypsilanti Township Agreement
Page Two

AGREEMENT SUMMARY

2022 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM
Dust Control $     11,856.42
Additional Street Sweeping Services $     17,113.74
Merritt Road, Munger Road to Stony Creek Road $     13,600.00
Section 2, Various Local Roads $     13,600.00
N. River Street, Clark Road southerly 0.12 miles $     51,300.00
Township-wide Limestone Resurfacing $     20,700.00
Subtotal $   128,170.16

Less WCRC 2022 Local Matching Funds $     64,085.08

ESTIMATED AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING 2022: $     64, 085.08

FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP:

___________________________________
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor

___________________________________
Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk

FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION:

___________________________________
Barbara Ryan Fuller, Chair

_________________________________
Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Managing Director



Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk Supervisor
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDGE

Tru stees
MAN IIJOHN P.

GLORIA PETERSON

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0065 
Fax:  (734) 484-5160

ytown.org

DEBBIE S
JIMMIE W ILSON JR.

TO:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees

FROM: Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor

DATE: March 30, 2022

RE:  Formal approval to retain the legal firm of Kerr, Russell and Weber, PLC
Account 101-729-801-024 Land Use Issues

Last week as Supervisor, I signed a Terms of Engagement letter (attached) with 
Attorney Jim Tamm, contingent upon board approval.  The law firm legal services 
is requested due to a federal lawsuit filed on 3/22/2022 naming the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, Clerk Jarrell in her official capacity as Clerk of Ypsilanti 
Township and Secretary of State Benson.  Responsible Government, Ballot 
Question Committee is the Plaintiff.

The lawsuit is seeking to challenge the constitutionality of MCL 125.3402(2) the 
section of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, which outlines procedures for a 
resident to challenge a master plan/zoning ordinance through a petition of 
referendum.  The Plaintiffs allege that the signature threshold requirement in larger 
municipalities such as Ypsilanti Township, coupled with the (30) daytime period to 
collect signatures, is unconstitutional.  As you know, the Township has recently 
adopted a new Zoning Ordinance on February 15, 2022.

Attorney Tamm has been part of Township’s legal professional services for 25 plus 
years in regards to zoning challenges.  He has recently moved to a different firm, 
which triggered a need to file the proper paperwork with our Accounting 
department and formal approval from the township board.

Township Attorney Dennis McClain has been assisting with handling of the 
lawsuit and recommendation to retain Jim Tamm for legal representation on this 
zoning matter.

Township

EWN
 

WANSON



Since we did not have, a board meeting until April 5 we needed to engage Attorney
Tamm’s services on behalf of the Township due to a conference hearing scheduled
today March 30.

Hourly rates for Mr. Tamm are $350, and other charges due to using other lawyers 
or associates in the firm.  Billing is monthly for their fees and approved by the 
township board.

Also, please know that on March 23 Township Attorney McClain requested 
Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool to review and make the 
determination of any coverage available under the Township’s insurance policy 
with MMLLPP.

Thank you for your consideration, please contact attorney McLain or Winters 
should you have additional questions regarding this lawsuit and request for James 
Tamm’s firm to represent Ypsilanti Township in this federal lawsuit.



KERR RUSSELL
Kerr, Russell and Weber, PLC 
500 Woodward Avenue Suite 2500 
Detroit, MI 48226-3427
(313) 961 0200 telephone
(313) 961-0388 facsimile

James E. Tamm jtamm@kerr-
russell.com

March 24, 2022

Ms. Brenda Stumbo
Supervisor
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI 48197
bstumbo@ytown.org

Re: Charter Township of Ypsilanti — Terms of Engagement

Dear Ms. Stumbo:

This letter will confirm the terms of our engagement to represent the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti. We are being retained with regard to issues relating to the Township's zoning regulation
regarding marihuana uses. Advice is being sought to general matters related to the regulation of
marihuana businesses through the Zoning Ordinance as well as potential challenges to zoning 
provisions enacted by the Township through petition initiatives and referendums. There is also the 
potential for litigation against the Township on these issues. Kerr Russell would be retained to 
represent the Township to the extent that coverage is not available through the Township's 
insurance pool. At this point, the time commitment is unknown.

The current hourly billing rates for the attorneys in our firm range from $185.00 for new 
lawyers to approximately $500.00 for senior partners. These hourly rates are subject to increases on 
January 1 of each year. My hourly rate is currently $360.00. Services that I perform will be charged 
at this rate. I anticipate performing most of the services that you require myself. However, other 
lawyers within the firm may be used from time to time depending on the circumstances. I will review 
and be responsible for all the firm's work. Every effort will be made to provide our services in the 
most cost-efficient manner possible. This includes using associates and other personnel for tasks 
that would be appropriate for their area of expertise and experience.

We bill our clients monthly for our fees and costs. Costs include, without limitation, travel
and lodging costs, delivery costs, copying charges, computer research charges, and long-distance 
telephone calls. In the event costs are anticipated to exceed a reasonable amount in the ordinary 
course, we would request that you either pay those costs directly or advance the sums necessary for 
us to pay those costs.

We look forward to our continued relationship with the Charter Township of Ypsilanti as
our client. However, just as you may terminate our representation at any time, we reserve the right 
to withdraw from representing the Township at any time.

{80000/202/D 1704411.DOCX;1}

IRAttorneys and Counselors

mailto:jtamm@kerr-russell.com
mailto:bstumbo@ytown.org


K E R R  R U S S E L L

Re: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Engagement Letter
March 24, 2022
Page 2

If the foregoing arrangement is acceptable to you, please acknowledge your acceptance by 
signing the letter where indicated below and return it to me. If you have any questions or wish to 
discuss the terms of the engagement further with me, please do not hesitate to call.

Very truly yours,

KERR, RUSSELL AND WEBER, PLC

James E. Tamm
James E. Tamm 

JET/cmr
cc: William D. Winters

mcwinlaw@gmail.com

The Above Terms and Conditions are
agreed to:

Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Dated:   March 25, 2022 _______________________

{8 0000/202/D1704411.DOCX; 1}

mailto:mcwinlaw@gmail.com


Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO

Clerk Supervisor
HEATHER JARRELL ROE

Treasurer
STAN ELDRIDGE

Tru stees
MAN IIJOHN P.

GLORIA PETERSON

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0065 
Fax:  (734) 484-5160

ytown.org

DEBBIE S
JIMMIE W ILSON JR.

MEMORANDUM

TO:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board Members

FROM: Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor

DATE: March 29, 2022

RE: Appointment of Gage Adams to fill the vacancy on the Planning
Commission created by    the resignation of Sally Ritchie with the
term expiring 12/31/2023.

Please consider Gage Adams for appointment to the Planning Commission.  Sally 
Ritchie, who served on our Planning Commission for over 20 years, has resigned 
to fully enjoy her retirement.  Sally’s community knowledge, commitment, and 
experience helped shape the planning decisions that we have today.   In her 
resignation email, Sally stated, “I look forward to seeing what the next generation 
of commissioner’s plan for our community, and hope that by giving up my seat, it 
will make way for bright new ideas.”

Gage Adams has served as a member of the Zoning Board of Appeals since 2017. 
He attended Ypsilanti Community Schools and is a graduate of Eastern Michigan 
University.  He is 26 years old and his address is in the same Oaklawn/Hawthorne 
neighborhood (off Ecorse) as Sally Richie.

Thank you for the consideration.

Township

EWN
 

WANSON



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT #5

April 5, 2022

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $95,431.00

Request to increase budget for the purchase of a Massey Ferguson tractor for Parks and Grounds. This will be
funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $31,346.00

Net Revenues $31,346.00

Expenditures: Equipment 101-770-977.000 $31,346.00

Net Expenditures $31,346.00

Request to increase budget for  road improvements as stated in Agreement #1 with Washtenaw County Road
Commission to include dust control, sweeping, crack sealing, and resurfacing on roads . This will be funded by an
appropriation of prior year fund balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $64,085.00

Net Revenues $64,085.00

Expenditures: Highway & ST-Road Construction 101-446-982.000 $64,085.00

Net Expenditures $64,085.00

213 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS  FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $2,760.00

Request to increase budget for the Sugarbrook Park improvement project and funds received from Washtenaw
County.   This will be funded by an increase to the revenue line for County grants.

Revenues: County Grant 213-000-581.000 $2,760.00

Net Revenues $2,760.00

Expenditures: CAP OUTLAY/SUGARBROOK 213-901-974.034 $2,760.00

Net Expenditures $2,760.00

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2022 Budget (#5)

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $95,431to $10,244,323 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined.

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads (BSRII) Fund budget by $2,760 to 
$2,575,274 and approve the department line item changes as outlined.



OTHER BUSINESS



BOARD MEMBER UPDATES


	April 5, 2022
	Work Session Agenda
	AAATA Presentation
	M3 Presentation
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes of the MArch 15, 2022 Work Session
	Minutes of the March 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting
	Statements and Checks April 5. 2022

	Attorney Report
	New Business
	Resolution 2022-05, Division of a Platted Lot
	Request to Purchase Tractor
	Request to Approve Addendum #2 for Community Publishing
	Request to Approve Agreement WCRC
	Request to Retain Kerr, Russell and Weber, PLC
	Request to Appoint Gage Adams to the Planning Commission
	Budget Amendment #5

	Other Business
	Board Member Updates

